
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     ( FEBRUARY 7) (Week 6 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held February 7, 2023 at 
3:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except when directed by the Chair or a majority of 
the board for a particular agenda item of a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
3:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                   Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                     2.  Approval of the minutes of the January 31, 2023 meeting 

         

                     3.  Approval of claims 

 

                     4.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                          a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions  

                          b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

 

                     5.  Board Administration- Karen James 

                          Approval of lifting tax suspension for P.D. 

 

 

 



 

 

                     6.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                          a.  Approve the underground utility permit for Long Lines and direct the Chair to sign the   

                               permits   

                          b.  Approve the underground utility permit for Western Iowa Telephone Association and direct    

                               the Chair to sign the permits 

 

 

End Consent Agenda 

 

                    7.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                         Approve the final voucher for project BROS-CO97(133)—5F-97 with                              Action 

                         Dixon Construction 

 

                    8.  Approval to direct ISG to complete preliminary work necessary for the                            Action 

                         establishment of a drainage district for the City of Salix under the District 

                         Watchman agreement with ISG  

 

                    9.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor 

                         Approve the resolution thanking and honoring Darwin Hamann and his family                Action 

                         for their positive contributions to our county 

 

                  10.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor & Mark Nelson 

                         Approve giving direction for recommended steps for Building Services Director             Action 

                         to study alternatives to Climbing Hill Building and bring back a recommendation 

 

                  11.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                               Information 

   

                  12.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                       Information 

  

                  13.  Board Concerns                                                                                                        Information         

 

                  14.  Budget Review Discussion for FY 2024    

                         a.  Reduce Debt Service by $37,500 due to FY 23 CIP loan reduction                            Action 

                         b.  Obligate ARPA funds (3.4 Final Rules) for Conservation and Emergency                  Action 

                              Services radios in the amount of $344,000 

                         c.  Obligate ARPA funds (3.4 Final Rules) for Trosper/Hoyt emergency repairs              Action 

                              in the amount of $292,750 

                         d.  Obligate additional ARPA funds for correctional officer’s adjustments in the               Action 

                              amount of $50,000 

                         e.  Discussion and action on wage plan employees concerning FY 24 budget                 Action 

                          f.  Overall review and action any budget items included in the FY 24 budget                  Action       

                                                                         

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS          

 
TUE., FEB. 7         11:00 a.m.    Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                                1:00 p.m.    Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting                                                  
 
WED., FEB. 8         7:30 a.m.      SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee Meeting - Hybrid    
 
                                8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                              12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                                                     
                         
THU., FEB. 9         12:00 p.m.      SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
 
                                4:00 p.m.       Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 
WED., FEB. 15      10:00 a.m.      Western Iowa Tourism Region, TBA 
 
                              12:00 p.m.       Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
                                   1:00 p.m.       Western Iowa Workforce Development Meeting, 2508 4th Street, Sioux City 
 
THU., FEB. 16        4:30 p.m.       Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., FEB. 17       12:00 p.m.        Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting Northwest AEA, Room G  
                                                            
WED., FEB. 22      2:30 p.m.        Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., FEB. 23     11:00 a.m.        Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122 Pierce  
 
MON., FEB. 27      6:00 p.m.        Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom             
 
MON., MAR. 6       6:00 p.m.        Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
TUE., MAR. 7        4:45 p.m.        Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  
 

WED., MAR. 8       7:30 a.m.        SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee, Hybrid 
 
                              8:05 a.m.        Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            12:00 p.m.        District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
 
                              6:30 p.m.        911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill 
 
                             8:00 p.m.         County’s Mayor Association Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill  
 

THU., MAR. 9  12:00 p.m.        SIMPCO Board of Directors – Hybrid                              
 
                              4:00 p.m.        Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
                               

                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



JANUARY 31, 2023, FIFTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, January 31, 2023, at 3:30 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger, Nelson, 
Radig and Ung; Taylor was absent.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis 
Butler, Budget and Finance Director, James Loomis, County Attorney, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, Michelle 
Skaff, Deputy Auditor and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
1. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve the agenda for January 31, 2023.  Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the January 24, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3. To approve the claims totaling $581,214.45.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To receive the appointment of Robert Copple, 610 Evans St., Sloan, to Mayor of Sloan, previously held by Charles, 

Thorpe, until the next regular/general election.  Copy filed. 
 
4b. To receive the County Recorder’s Report of Fees Collect for the period of 10/01/22 through 12/31/22.  Copy filed. 
 
4c. To receive the canvass of the Sandhill-Lakeport Intercounty Drainage District Trustee election.  Copy filed. 
 
4d. To receive the canvass of the McCandless Intercounty Drainage District Trustee election.  Copy filed. 
 
4e. To receive the canvass of the Little Sioux Intercounty Drainage District Trustee election.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution to withdraw from the Articles of Agreement which 

formed the Workforce Development Chief Elected Official Consortium for the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act of 2014. 

 
RESOLUTION #15,534 

A RESOLUTION TO WITHDRAW FROM THE ARTICLE OF AGREEMENT WHICH FORMED THE 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL CONSORTIUM FOR THE WORKFORCE 

INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT OF 2014 
 

WHEREAS, Woodbury County previously signed a resolution to approve the Articles of Agreement creating the 
Workforce Development Chief Elected Official Consortium (CEO) together with 17 other counties in western and 
southwestern Iowa, known as the “Western Iowa Workforce Development Area” or WILWDA; and,  
 
WHEREAS, this 28E Agreement was filed with the Iowa Secretary of State on July 7, 2020 and assigned filing 
number M512796; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 13 of the Agreement allows counties, at their sole option, to withdraw from the Agreement at 
least 90 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year (April 1 or any year); and, 
 
WHEREAS, at their meeting on January 20, 2023, the CEO Board discussed the 28E Agreement, weighing the roles 
and responsibilities of counties as a result of the Agreement and impacts to services offered to their citizens both 
under the agreement and in absence of the Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the CEO Board voted 11-0 at this meeting, after this discussion, to dissolve the 28E Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors that: 
 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

1. It does hereby invoke Article 13 of the Articles of Agreement which formed the Workforce Development Chief 
Elected Official Consortium for the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 and withdraws from the 
Agreement at the end of the day June 30, 2023. 

2. It understands and is its intention withdrawal of the Agreement by all 18 counties will terminate the 
Agreement. 

 
Passed and approved this 31st day of January 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6. To receive for signatures a Resolution Thanking and Commending Mark Campbell for his years of service to 

Woodbury County. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,535 
A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

MARK CAMPBELL 
FOR HIS SERVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Mark Campbell has capably served Woodbury County as an employee of the County Attorney’s Office for 
39 years from March 27, 1984 to February 10, 2023 
 
WHEREAS, the service given by Mark Campbell as a Woodbury County employee, has been characterized by his 
dedication to the best interests of the citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 
undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Mark Campbell for his years of service to Woodbury 
County; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below that the future hold only the best for this very 
deserving person, Mark Campbell. 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED this 31st day of January 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
7. To approve the lifting of tax suspension for Michael Reiners, parcel #894726362014, 101 Logan.  Copy filed. 
 
8a. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale date of parcel 

#894725454004, 5217 1st St. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,536 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 

 
WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
Lot Thirty (30) in Block Two (2) of the Hamiltons Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(5217 1st Street) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       the 14th Day of February, 2023 at 3:35 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 3 
 

 

2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 14th Day of February, 2023, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.  That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 
     bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $400.00 plus recording fees.  

 
4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  
 
Dated this 31st Day of January, 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
8b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale date of parcel 

#894723379019, 3431 Athlone Ave. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,537 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 

 
WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
Lot Nine (9) in Block Seventeen (17) of Kelly Park, an Addition to Sioux City in the County of Woodbury and State 
of Iowa 
(3431 Athlone Ave.) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       the 14th Day of February, 2023 at 3:37 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 14th Day of February, 2023, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.  That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 
     bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $718.00 plus recording fees.  

 
4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  
 
Dated this 31st Day of January, 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
8c. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale date of parcel 

#894729435011, 200 W 3rd St. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,538 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 

 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 4 
 

 

WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
The Easterly Fifty-five feet (Ely 55 ft) of Lot Twelve (12) in Block Thirty-two (32) of Sioux City Addition to City of 
Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(200 W. 3rd Street) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       the 14th Day of February, 2023 at 3:39 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 14th Day of February, 2023, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.  That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 
     bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $323.00 plus recording fees.  

 
4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  

 
Dated this 31st Day of January, 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
9. To approve the revised 2023 Committee Assignments.  Copy filed. 
 
10a. To approve the separation of Dawn Banys, Clerk II, County Treasurer Dept., effective 01-19-23. Resignation; and 

the appointment of Mark Nelson, Board Member, Board of Supervisors Dept., effective 01-24-23, $37,040.71/year, 
$1,371.88/bi-weekly. Appointment.  Copy filed. 

 
10b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for a Clerk II, 

County Treasurer Dept  AFSCME Courthouse: $18.22/hour.  Copy filed. 
 
10c. To approve the AFSCME County Attorney MOU.  Copy filed. 
 
11. To approve to cancel the February 21, 2023 meeting.   
 

Carried 4-0. 
 

12. Neapolitan Labs presented the new county website.   
 
13. Riley Gibson, Summit Carbon Solution, gave an update on Summit Carbon Solutions project.   
 

Motion by Ung second by Radig to receive information presented by Summit Carbon Solution.  Carried 4-0. Copy 
filed. 

 
14. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution declaring a state 

of emergency exists pertaining to structural exterior south-west wall of the Woodbury County Trosper-Hoyt 
building.  Carried 4-0. 

 
RESOLUTION #13,539 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 5 
 

 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING A STATE OF EMERGENCY EXISTS PERTAINING TO 
STRUCTURAL EXTERIOR SOUTH-WEST OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY TROSPER- 

HOYT BUILDING 
 

WHEREAS the Woodbury County Building Services was notified of movement relating to South-west exterior wall 
at the Trosper-Hoyt Building and 
 
WHEREAS Woodbury County engaged Cannon Moss Brygger Architects and Raker Rhodes Engineering to inspect 
wall in question and 
 
WHEREAS Cannon Moss Brygger Architects has completed a report and written a letter to the Chairperson of the 
Woodbury County Board of Supervisors notifying them that in their professional opinion that a state of emergency 
exists where action is needed immediately to protect from further property damage and prevent serious injury or 
possible death and 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, are convinced the South-west exterior wall of the Trosper-
Hoyt Building is in need of emergency repair, 
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE Board of Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa hereby declares that a state of 
emergency exists in regards to the south-west exterior wall of the Woodbury County Trosper-Hoyt Building and 
that immediate action is needed to protect the County from further property damage and to prevent serious injury 
or possible death. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Supervisors intend to take any reasonable action allowable 
under Iowa Law to protect the County from further property damage and prevent serios injury or possible death. 
 
SO RESOLVED this 31st day of January 2023 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
15. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the contract with Calhoun Burns and Associates for bridge inspection 

for calendar year 2023.  Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 
 
16.  Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve paperwork for ICAP to become our property insurance provider.  

Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 
 
17a. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve Conflict Waiver regarding Second Amendment to Lease Agreement 

with the Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center Authority.  Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 
 
17b. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution fixing date for a 

public hearing on the proposal to amend the lease agreement with the Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center 
Authority.  Carried 4-0. 

 
RESOLUTION #13,540 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER 

AUTHORITY 
 

WHEREAS, Woodbury County, State of Iowa (the “County”) and the Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center 
Authority (the “Authority”) have heretofore entered into that certain Lease Agreement originally dated 
September 1, 2020, as amended and substituted (the “Lease”); and 
 
WHEREAS, it is now deemed necessary and advisable that the County should provide for the authorization of a 
Second Amendment to the Lease (the “Second Amendment”) with the Authority; and 

 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 6 
 

 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 346.27 provides that the Authority shall have and exercise certain public and 
essential governmental powers and functions including the right to lease all or any part of a building to an 
incorporating unit upon rental terms agreed upon between the Authority and the incorporating unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority and County have negotiated the form of a proposed Second Amendment, which is 
intended to provide for the reimbursement of certain insurance expenses and to clarify the use of the Additional 
Rent and Maintenance Payments (as those terms are defined in the Lease); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Second Amendment does not alter the Base Rent (as defined in the Lease) due per the terms of 
the Lease; and 

 

WHEREAS, neither Chapter 331 nor any other Code provision sets forth any procedural action required to be 
taken before said Second Amendment can be approved, and pursuant to Section 331.301(5), Code of Iowa, it 
is deemed sufficient if the action hereinafter described be taken and the Woodbury County Auditor causes to 
be published notice of the proposal and of the time and place of the meeting at which the Board of 
Supervisors proposes to take action thereon and to receive oral and/or written objections to such action; and 

 
WHEREAS, the following action is now considered to be in the best interests of the County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. That this Board of Supervisors meet in the Board Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, Iowa, at 3:40 P.M. on February 14, 2023, for the purpose of taking action on the matter of the 
proposal to amend the Lease with the Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center Authority. 
 
Section 2. That the Woodbury County Auditor is hereby directed to cause at least one publication to be made of 
a notice of said meeting, in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, published at least once 
weekly, and having general circulation in Woodbury County, said publication to be not less than four (4) clear 
days nor more than twenty (20) days before the date of said public meeting. 
 
Section 3. The notice of the proposed action shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA, ON THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER 
AUTHORITY, AND THE HEARING THEREON 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, will hold a public hearing 
on February 14, 2023, at 3:40 P.M. in the Board Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at which meeting the Board of Supervisors proposes to take action on the proposal to authorize a 
Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement (the “Second Amendment”) with the Woodbury County Law 
Enforcement Center Authority (the "Authority") said Lease Agreement originally dated September 1, 2020, as 
amended and substituted (the “Lease”). 
 
The Authority and County have negotiated the form of a proposed Second Amendment, which is intended to 
provide for the reimbursement of certain insurance expenses and to clarify the use of the Additional Rent and 
Maintenance Payments (as those terms are defined in the Lease). The Second Amendment does not alter the 
Base Rent (as defined in the Lease) due per the terms of the Lease. 
 
A copy of the Second Amendment is on file for public inspection during regular business hours in the office of the 
Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa. 
 
At the above meeting the Board of Supervisors shall receive oral or written objections to the proposal to enter 
into the Second Amendment. After all objections have been received and considered, the Board of Supervisors 
will at this meeting or at any adjournment thereof, take additional action on the proposal or will abandon the 



January 31, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                               Page 7 
 

 

proposal to authorize said Second Amendment. 

 
This notice is given by order of the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa. 

Dated this 31st day of January, 2023. 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
18. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
19. There were no citizen concerns. 
 
20.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
21c. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve County Supervisors Medical Examiner budget as submitted.  Carried 4-

0. 
 
21a. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve allocation of $368,665 from Local Option Sales Tax to fund the total 

Nature Center department budget allocation.  Carried 3-1; Radig opposed. 
 
21b. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve the request to add a full-time transport officer to Sheriff’s office at a 

cost of $77,288.  Carried 4-0. 
 
21d. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to reduce the medical services line item in the correctional facility budget by 

$197,205.  Carried 4-0. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Radig to reduce the gaming revenues allocation by $100,000.  Carried 4-0. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to allocate $15,059 of cash reserves to rural basic budgeted expenses.  Carried 

4-0. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until February 7, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 













LIFTING TAXSUSPI.ON.doc 

                               WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

                                  BOARD ADMINISTRATION 
          MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
 
TO:                   Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:             Karen James, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:              February 1, 2023 
 
RE:                   Lifting of Tax Suspensions  
 
 
 
Please lift the tax suspension for P.D. as this person is deceased. 
 
 
 
 



































F E B U R A R Y  2 ,  2 0 2 3  

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

Attn: Mark Nahar, Woodbury County Engineer 

Woodbury County Courthouse 

620 Douglas St. 

Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

 

1725 North Lake Avenue + Storm Lake, IA 50588 

712.732.7745 + ISGInc.com 

Architecture + Engineering + Environmental + Planning 

 

 

R E :  C I T Y  O F  S A L I X  P E T I T I O N  T O  E S T A B L I S H  A  D R A I N A G E  D I S T R I C T  

 

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors: 

We have reviewed the drainage petition filed with the Board of Supervisors by the City of Salix and two (2) additional landowners. 

This petition is requesting a new Drainage District be established to afford the City of Salix and the landowners of Salix an improved 

outlet, for there is no natural surface outlet available to the City and their current outlet agreement with the  Farmers Drainage 

Ditch is being terminated. The City submitted with their petition a conceptual map that provides the approximate location of the 

proposed drainage ditch they wish constructed and potential area to be improved by the establishment of said open ditch. The 

formation of a new drainage district will be required to follow the procedures within Chapter 468 of the Iowa Code .  

While researching background information for this area, we reviewed the City of Salix 2015 Comprehensive Plan, which contains 

information regarding the petitioned improvements. It is stated in this Plan that V&K Engineering had completed a preliminary 

engineering study of the proposed outlet. Therefore, to fully scope the improvements the City is requesting, we feel a due diligence 

meeting with the City of Salix and their City Engineer, V&K needs to be held to discuss the preliminary engineering work and it’s 

alignment with Chapter 468. From this discovery, ISG can better estimate the cost of engineering necessary to complete the 

Engineering Study and Report for the improvements as required by the code. This engineering cost estimate is necessary to 

establish the amount of Bond the petitioners will need to post under Section 468.9 of the Iowa Code.  

Therefore, as the appointed Drainage District Watchman for Woodbury County, we are providing you this guidance letter with our 

recommendations of steps to be followed in accepting the petition and appointing ISG as Drainage Engineer to make the 

necessary study and report. The original petition and associated conceptual map are included for reference along with a copy of 

the Stormwater page from the City of Salix Comprehensive Plan.  

DRAINAGE D ISTRICT  ESTABL ISHMENT ( IAC  CHAPTER 468)  

Iowa Code Chapter 468 “Levee and Drainage Districts and Improvements” provides the requirements for the establishment of a 

drainage district. If Woodbury County does not have an appointed drainage legal counsel, ISG recommends that legal counsel 

with drainage district proceeding experience be appointed and engaged throughout the establishment process to ensure that 

requirements of the code are being met. Below are summaries of the specified code sections for the establishment of a drainage 

district, meant to provide the Board with an overview of the necessary steps. 

• 468.6 Number of Petitioners – Two (2) or more landowners may file a petition for establishment of a drainage district 

• 468.8 Petition – Requirements of Petition  

• 468.9 Bond – A bond shall be filed with the petition, conditioned for the payment of all costs and expenses incurred in 

the proceedings in case the district is not established 

• 468.10 Engineer – Board to appoint a competent civil engineer  

• 468.11 Survey – Engineer to examine lands and facilities described in petition 

• 468.12 Report – Engineer to prepare full written report of proposed improvements for establishment 

• 468.13 Classification – If requested by the petitioners prior to hearing on the Engineer’s Report, the Board shall order a 

classification of lands in proposed district to determine the distribution of benefits 



 

Page 2 of 3 
712.732.7745 + ISGInc.com 

 

 

• 468.14-.20 – Outlines requirements for notice of hearing on engineer’s report for establishment 

• 468.21 Hearing – Board may dismiss petition at hearing if proposed improvement will not materially benefit the 

petitioned lands or would not be for public benefit 

• 468.22 Establishment – Board may establish district or direct engineer to complete further investigation. Also, Board 

shall direct the Auditor to appoint appraisers to assess value of right-of-way required for the proposed open ditch 

improvements 

• 468.24-.25 Appraisers – Appraisers shall be appointed to assess claims for damages, other than right-of-way, and shall 

prepare and file a report outlining recommended damages for proposed improvements 

• 468.26 Award by Board – At hearing, Board to consider Appraiser’s report and make final determinations of damage 

amounts for proposed improvements 

• 468.27 Dismissal or establishment – Board at hearing shall evaluate costs of improvement and damages, and either 

dismiss the petition for establishment or permanently establish and locate district.  

• 468.28 Remonstrance – If at or before final hearing remonstrance is filed by a majority (+50%) of landowners owning in 

aggregate seventy percent (70%) or more of the land in proposed district, Board shall dismiss the proceedings and assess 

incurred costs to the petitioners  

PROJECT  D ISCOVERY  

Prior to the Board’s appointment of ISG for the survey and report to address this petition, the petitioners must file a bond 

conditioned for the payment of all costs and expenses incurred in the proceedings described above. Working with the Board’s 

appointed legal counsel, ISG can provide an estimate of cost and expenses anticipated to address this petition through hearing 

and establishment as described above. This estimate would provide the Board with a value of bond to be required by the 

petitioners prior to proceeding. 

However, as noted in our introduction of this letter we are recommending additional discovery and research be performed to 

better determine the scope of this proposed project and the associated costs and expenses. A meeting with the City and their 

Engineer, V&K would facilitate the discovery of previously completed work. This due diligence will prevent duplicate effort, such 

as concept engineering work, coordination efforts with existing infrastructure entities (Utilities, Secondary Roads, IDOT, etc.), and 

coordination efforts regulating authorities for permitting (USACE, DNR, NRCS, etc.) which will reduce costs to the proposed 

landowners. 

  



 

Page 3 of 3 
712.732.7745 + ISGInc.com 

 

RECCOMENDED ACT ION  

Therefore, ISG is recommending that the following actions: 

1. The Board direct ISG to meet with City of Salix, Veenstra & Kimm as engineer for the City of Salix, and Woodbury County 

Engineer to review needs and previously completed studies and options evaluated.  

2. Based on discovery from said meeting, ISG will meet with appointed legal counsel to considered other concerns to be 

covered with the Board for consideration of acceptance of petition. 

3. If Board accepts petition, ISG will provide a fee estimate to the Board of Supervisors outlining the expected costs & 

expenses to complete the engineering study and report and provide the services necessary to follow through hearings 

for determination of establishment.  

4. After the necessary bond has been provided to the Board by the petitioners, appoint ISG as engineer for study and report. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

         

 

Ivan Droessler, PE Caleb Rasmussen, PE 

Senior Civil Engineer Civil Engineer 

Ivan.Droessler@ISGInc.com  Caleb.Rasmussen@ISGInc.com 

 

enc:  Original Petition 

Page from Salix Master Plan 

 

c:  Mark Nahra, Woodbury County Engineer 









69

Estimated Project Cost

$ 1,700,000

V&K Engineering based this estimate 
on a preliminary engineering study. 

cost with V&K when the detailed 

Funding Sources

The City of Salix should apply for 
funding with the Waste and Water 
Disposal Loan and Grant Program 
of the US Department of Agriculture. 
In 2015, the program provided $1.29 
million in loans for water-related 
projects in Iowa. The application 

be found on this website: http://www.
rd.usda.gov/programs-services/water-
waste-disposal-loan-grant-program/ia. 

The city should also contact the 
Iowa USDA Area 8 Director for more 
information:

Randy Hildreth, Area 8 Director
1100 12th Street SW, Suite C
Le Mars, IA 51031
Phone: 712-546-5149 Ext. 4 
Fax: 855-251-224

Funding & 
Resources

Implementation
The city should coordinate with the Iowa Department of Transportation and Woodbury County 
on having the drainage line run across Interstate-29 and through unincorporated areas. The SCPT 
recommends planting native wetland and prairie plants around the retention ponds. These plants 
stabilize the pond against erosion. The inclusion of a sediment forebay at the inlets of detention 
ponds prevents sediments from accumulating at the bottom of the pond.

The pond should have 
a gradual slope so that 
it supports wetland and 
prairie plants. Grading the 
shoreline at approximately 

foot vertical will achieve 
this. An underwater ledge 
about six to 12 inches below 
the normal water level of 
the pond will help support 
wetland plants.

Description
Flash Flooding has been a 
recurring problem in Salix 
during severe storms, as 
pointed out several times 
during the public meeting 
process. The high water 
table also exacerbates 

This project aims to attain 
the goals of Supporting 
the Rural Landscape and 
Helping Existing Places Thrive 
by managing stormwater. 
This project is based on a 
conceptual plan developed 
by V&K Engineering (refer 
to map below). This project 
calls for planting wetland 
and prairie plants around the 
proposed retention ponds.

Stormwater Project
Priority





WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Darwin Hamann 
 

FOR YOUR sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Darwin Hamann has been named Cattleman of the Year by the 

Woodbury County Cattlemen’s Association for his excellence in producing high-quality 
beef, and  
 

WHEREAS, the beef industry contributes positively to our economy here in 

Woodbury County, and 
 

Whereas, Mr. Hamann’s and other producers’ efforts help feed America and help 

to keep us independent and free, and 
 

Whereas, producers and their families make many sacrifices enduring 

challenging times and weathering many storms, and  
 

Whereas, Mr. Hamann has stewarded the industry in such a way as to continue 

on a family legacy that reflects well upon the ability to continue to sustain and grow,  
 

NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

hereby congratulates Darwin Hamann and his family for their excellence in industry as 
well as their positive contributions to our community. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 7th day of February 2023. 

 
 

                     WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_____________________________          ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman   Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member 
 
 
______________________________           _____________________________ 
Mark E. Nelson, Member              Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
                                      _________________________ 
    Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

1/30/2022 2/7/2023

Supervisors J. Taylor/M. Nelson

During the last 9 years, we have engaged in long-term planning to include replacement of the failing Law Enforcement Center, 
energy inefficiencies, an underutilized Prairie Hills building, a hundred-year-old "county farm," failing terra cotta/courthouse 
windows, and roads. We will now have a new jail, all-LED lighting, a Sheriff's training center in place of the now-demolished Prairie 
Hills building, courthouse windows replaced and terra cotta secured, a 10-year plan to borrow from future CF industries through tax 
increment financing and build back a 4-6 inch gravel base, and the farm sold to help keep taxes flat. We should continue to evaluate 
long-term planning as it relates to the Courthouse, Trosper Hoyt, and Emergency Services.

The building at Climbing Hills has had several issues that have come back before the Board of Supervisors to include the need for 
tuckpointing the building, which is a very expensive proposition not to mention the high cost and ill-advised retrofit of the HVAC 
system there. Additionally, energy efficiencies should be studied from a cost-benefit analysis to see over 10 and 20 years time less 
rebates what upfront costs in a more efficient building would be versus the old. Additionally, the Sheriff's Office Training Center was 
something we originally put forward as a promise when fears were that law enforcement personnel would simply lose training 
space. We followed through on that promise, but the roadmap and blueprint can serve as one for this present problem: 
 
1) Direct Kenny Schmitz to work with Emergency Services Director Scott Mitchell for a rough scope of magnitude 
2) Identify additional needs/wants (differentiating between the two) and a working plan not to exceed $1.2 million 
3) Identify sources of funds to include a 5 and 10 year plan of payback (most likely from Gaming Revenue) in working on a potential 
lease-purchase agreement 
4) Identify problems or risks associated with the problem (leech field) and recommendations for current building that could 
re-purpose rather than demolish the building, e.g. storage, etc. 
5) Come back to BOS with an approvable plan within 4-8 weeks

Give Direction to Begin Long-Term Planning for Potential Climbing Hills Building Replacement for 
Emergency Services

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

The impact could be anywhere from $500,000 to $1.2 million but the impact should be predicated on having options. The amount of 
revenue could come--as it did with the Sheriff's Training Center--through gaming revenue regularly scheduled on a program ranging 
from $75,000-$120,000 per year for 5 or 10 years.

Approve giving direction for recommended steps for Building Services Director to study alternatives to 
Climbing Hill Building and bring back a recommendation.

Approve giving direction for recommended steps for Building Services Director to study alternatives to 
Climbing Hill Building and bring back a recommendation.

















 

WOODBURY COUNTY BUILDING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

                                                                                                                     2/02/2023 

Trosper Hoyt Facility Projects: 

 
❖ Exterior Structural South-Wall & Roof cap - (Emergency Resolution) 

3rd Floor – Installation of 15 Structural Beams per Engineers specifications. 

                   Worked to be performed by Building Services Department.  

                   Beam fabrication Sioux City Foundry. 

                   Estimated Cost $25,000 

 

2nd Floor- Building Services- Remove/ Relocate all Office Furnishings  

                  Contractor- Removal/ Replacement Drywall walls, Ceiling Grid, Heating Registers,    

                  Plumbing, Electrical. Installation of 15 Structural Beams in walls.  

                  Estimated Cost $212,750 

South Wall Structural  Estimated Total Cost = $237,750 

 

 
❖ Structural I-Beams Firebrick Removal & Fire-Retardant Replacement 

2nd Floor- Work to be performed by Building Services Department 

                   Building (south); Remove Offices & Courtrooms Furnishings, remove/ replace all  

                   ceiling grids, remove all structural steel beam firebrick, install fire retardant to all  

                   steel I-beams. 

3rd Floor- Work to be performed by Building Services Department 

                  Building (south); remove all structural steel beam firebrick, install fire retardant to 

                  all steel I-beams. 

Firebrick Removal/ Fire Retardant Installation Estimated Cost = $55,000 

 

 

PROJECTED TOTALS = $292,750.00 

 

                    

 

                   

 

 




